
 
 
 
 
 
January 10, 2017 
 
 
 

TO: San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Board of Directors, Alternates, and 
Interested Parties 

 
FROM: Jason Peltier, Secretary (by Cheri Worthy) 
 
RE: Thursday, January 12, 9:30 a.m. 
 Board of Directors’ Adjourned Regular Meeting 
 
Attached are additional documents for your review in preparation of the January 12, 2017, 
Board of Directors’ adjourned regular meeting are: 
 
 

1) Draft December 8, 2016 Meeting Minutes 
 

2) Financial & Expenditures Reports 
 

3) Letter from San Joaquin Valley Water Infrastructure Authority Requesting Authority 
Participation 

 
4) Draft Resolution Making Findings Under California Environmental Quality Act, Authorizing 

Execution of Central Delta-Mendota Region, Northern Delta-Mendota Region and South 
Tracy Region Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Services Activity Agreements and 
Authorizing Actions Related Thereto 

 
5) Draft San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Central Delta-Mendota Region Sustainable 

Groundwater Management Act Services Activity Agreement  
 

6) Draft Memorandum Of Agreement For Central Delta-Mendota Region Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act Services  

 
 

Thank you, and please give us a call if you have any questions or concerns regarding this 
information. 



DRAFT 

SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES FOR December 8, 2016 
 

 
The Board of Directors of the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority convened at 

approximately 9:35 a.m. at 842 6th Street, in Los Banos, California for a regular meeting, with 
Chairperson Mike Stearns presiding. 

Directors and Alternate Directors in Attendance 

Division 1 
Jim McLeod, Director ~ David Weisenberger, Alternate 
Rick Gilmore, Director 
Anthea Hansen, Director ~ Earl Perez, Alternate 

Division 2 
Don Peracchi, Director 
Sarah Woolf, Director (joined after Item 7) 
John Bennett, Director 

William Diedrich, Director 
Division 3 

Michael Stearns, Director & Chairperson ~ Jeff Bryant, Alternate 
Chris White, Alternate for James O’Banion (joined after Item 9) 
Randy Houk, Alternate for Cannon Michael  
Mike Gardner, Alternate for Ric Ortega 

Division 4 
Gary Kremen, Director ~ John Varela, Alternate 
Richard Santos, Director 
Jeff Cattaneo, Alternate for John Tobias & Joseph Tonascia 

Division 5 
Jose Gutierrez, Alternate for Tom Birmingham 
Steve Stadler, Director ~ Thomas W. Chaney, Alternate 
 

Authority Representatives Present 

Diane Rathmann, Legal Counsel 
Gabriel Delgado, Legal Counsel 
Jason Peltier, Executive Director 
Jon Rubin, General Counsel 
Tona Mederios, Director of Finance 

Ara Azhderian, Water Policy Administrator 

Tom Boardman, Water Resources Engineer 

Frances Mizuno, Assistant Executive Director 

Paul Stearns, O&M Manager 

 

 



DRAFT 

Others in Attendance 
Mike Wade, California Farm Water Coalition 
Don Wright 
Larry Freemen, San Joaquin River Exchange Contractors Water Authority 
Jarrett Martin, Central California Irrigation District 
Chase Hurley, Henry Miller Reclamation District 
Steve Prevostini, Patterson Irrigation District 
Dana Jacobson, Santa Clara Valley Water District 
Ben Fenters, Provost & Pritchard 
Janet Gutierrez, San Luis Water District 
John Beam, Consultant – Grasslands Water District 
Eric Ruckdaschel, San Luis Canal Company 
Matt Hurley, Fresno Slough Water District 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Chairperson Michael Stearns called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Board to Consider Corrections or Additions to the Agenda of Items, as authorized 
by Government Code Section 54950 et seq. 

There were no additions or corrections to the agenda. 

 

3. Opportunity for Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

 
CONSENT ITEMS 

4. Board to Consider a) Approval of November 10, 2016 Meeting Minutes, b) Acceptance 
of the Financial & Expenditures Report, c) Acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report 
for the Quarter Ending 9/30/16, d) Recommendation by the Finance and 
Administration Committee to Accept the Disposition of the DWR – San Luis Joint 
Use Credit, Calendar Years 2011-2014 

On motion of Director Don Peracchi, seconded by Director Rick Gilmore, the Board of 

Directors approved the items on the consent calendar.  The vote on the motion was as follows: 

AYES:  McLeod, Gilmore, Hansen, Peracchi, Bennett, Diedrich, 
Stearns, Houk, Gardner, Kremen, Santos, Cattaneo, 
Gutierrez, Stadler 

NAYS:  None 

ABSTENTIONS:  None 

 

 



DRAFT 

ACTION ITEMS 

5. Board to Consider Water Resources Committees Recommendation to Authorize 
the Authority to Pursue a Proposition 1 Application for a Disadvantage Community 
Involvement Grant for the San Joaquin River Funding Region in Cooperation with 
the Region’s Five Other Regional Water Management Groups 

Water Policy Administrator Ara Azhderian informed the Board that on Monday this 

subject was discussed with the Water Resources Committee, and the Committee recommended 

that the Board authorize the Authority to pursue a Proposition 1 application for a Disadvantage 

Communities Involvement grant for the San Joaquin River funding region in cooperation with 

the region’s other regional water management groups. 

Azhderian explained that the Westside’s primary regional concerns include 

management of water supply, reliability, and quality, reuse, recycling, and discharge of 

agricultural drain water, and water use efficiency.  The current draft of the Westside-San 

Joaquin Integrated Water Resources Plan is undergoing revision to comport with Proposition 1 

and other guidelines promulgated since it was last approved by the Authority’s Board of 

Directors.  Azhderian also stated that the Westside-San Joaquin Region spans the Westside of 

both the San Joaquin River and Tulare Lake Proposition 1 funding regions. For purpose of this 

Request for Proposals (RFP), the Authority is soliciting proposals to prepare a Prop 1 grant 

application only for disadvantaged communities (DAC) within the San Joaquin River (SJR) 

funding region as another organization has taken lead in the Tulare funding reigon. The SJR 

funding region contains 5 other Regional Water Management Groups (RWMGs) that have 

expressed interest in participating in the preparation of a Prop 1 DAC grant application. While 

the Authority is initiating this effort to prepare the grant, it intends to work in close 

coordination with our fellow SJR RWMGs. 

On motion of Director Richard Santos, seconded by Director Don Peracchi, the Board 

unanimously authorized the Authority to pursue a Proposition 1 application for a Disadvantage 

Communities Involvement grant for the San Joaquin River funding region in cooperation with 

the region’s five other regional water management groups.  The vote on the motion was as 

follows: 

AYES:  McLeod, Gilmore, Hansen, Peracchi, Woolf, Bennett, Diedrich, 
Stearns, Houk, Gardner, Kremen, Santos, Cattaneo, Gutierrez, 
Stadler 

NAYS:  None 

ABSTENTIONS:  None 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

6. Board to Consider Supporting Use, in Substantially the Format Presented, of the 
Executive Director and General Counsel Performance Plan Forms  

Executive Director Jason Peltier gave a brief history of the reasons for developing these 

forms and asked the Board to support them as presented.  On motion of Director Rick Gilmore, 

seconded by Director Woolf, the Board unanimously approved to support use of the Executive 

Director and General Counsel Performance Plan Forms, in substantially the format presented.  

The vote on the motion was as follows: 

AYES:   McLeod, Gilmore, Hansen, Peracchi, Woolf, Bennett, 
Diedrich, Stearns, White, Houk, Gardner, Kremen, Santos, 
Cattaneo, Gutierrez, Stadler 

NAYS:   None 

ABSTENTIONS: None 

 

7. Board to Consider Water Resources Committee Recommendation to Authorize the 
Authority to Fund, in Partnership with Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District, a Genetic 
Mark-Capture Project to Improve Vital Rates Estimation of Winter-Run Salmon 

Water Policy Administrator Ara Azhderian informed the Board that on Monday this 

subject was discussed with the Water Resources Committee, and the Committee recommended 

that the Board authorize the Authority to fund, in partnership with Glenn-Colusa Irrigation 

District, a genetic mark-capture project to improve vital rates estimation of winter-run salmon.  

Azhderian reported that spawning success among in-river adult winter-run is presently inferred 

from an estimate of juveniles reaching the Red Bluff Diversion Dam.  An improved estimate of 

spawner abundance and other important metrics can be obtained by incorporating genetic 

techniques in to existing monitoring activities. Effectively, genetic methods can link adult 

winter-run encountered at the Keswick trap and in carcass surveys with juvenile outmigrants 

through genotypes.  These procedures enable specific vital rate metrics to be generated such as 

the number of contribution breeders and the relative juvenile recruitment of hatchery and /or 

natural-origin fish that spawned in-river. 

Azhderian also reported that GCID will contract with Cramer Fish Sciences to use 

genetic mark-capture, parentage, and related methods, to characterize reproductive success 

among individuals and hatchery contribution to in-river juvenile winter-run production. 

Contract costs are not to exceed $100,000.  The proposed costs would be split 50-50 with the 

GCID, with the Authority’s share being allocated to the existing Fiscal Year-End 2017 LegOps 1 



DRAFT 

technical support science budget.  

On motion of Richard Santos, seconded by Director Gary Kremen, the Board 

unanimously approved to authorize the Authority to fund, in partnership with Glenn-Colusa 

Irrigation District, a genetic mark-capture project to improve vital rates estimation of winter-

run salmon.  The vote on the motion was as follows: 

AYES:   McLeod, Gilmore, Hansen, Peracchi, Woolf, Bennett, 
Diedrich, Stearns, White, Houk, Gardner, Kremen, Santos, 
Cattaneo, Gutierrez, Stadler 

NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
 

8. Board to Consider Water Resources Committee Recommendation to Authorize 
the Authority to Fund, in Partnership with the Northern California Water 
Association and Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, a Floodplain 
Food Production Pilot Program in the Sacramento Valley 

Water Policy Administrator Ara Azhderian reported that this proposal is essentially an 

expansion and acceleration of the Prop 1 floodplain food production pilot program grant 

application previously authorized by the Board.  To build on the existing food production 

momentum, NCWA will contract with water districts to incentivize participation in the Pilot 

Program by covering the additional water management expenses related to the activity. The goal 

of the Pilot Program is to demonstrate the efficacy of producing food through floodplain 

inundation by enlisting up to 10,000 acres of rice fields into the Program in winter/spring of 2017. 

Contract costs are not to exceed $400,000. The proposed costs would be split 25% NCWA, 50% 

MWD, and 25% Authority, with the Authority’s share being allocated to the existing Fiscal Year-

End 2017 LegOps 1 technical support budget. 

On motion of Director Gary Kremen, seconded by Director Richard Santos, the Board 

unanimously approved to authorize the Authority to fund, in partnership with Northern 

California Water Association and Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, a 

floodplain food production pilot program in the Sacramento Valley.  The vote on the motion 

was as follows: 

AYES:   McLeod, Gilmore, Hansen, Peracchi, Woolf, Bennett, 
Diedrich, Stearns, White, Houk, Gardner, Kremen, Santos, 
Cattaneo, Gutierrez, Stadler 

NAYS:   None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 

 

 



DRAFT 

REPORT ITEMS 

9. 2017 Operations, Communication, and Outreach Plan 

Mike Wade of the California Farm Water Coalition reported that CFWC has a 

comprehensive communications plan underway designed to anticipate potential news stories 

and circulate information that the broader agricultural industry can use in their contacts with 

the media. This activity is an integral part of the 2016 CFWC Strategic Plan, which includes, 1) 

Unity with similar groups and partner with other organizations on farm water information 

development and messaging, 2) Emphasize proactive messaging over reactive in order to drive 

the discussion on farm water issues, 3) Increase production of fact sheets and info graphs aimed 

at the general public, 4) Improve and expand social media strategies including communications 

with other agricultural-related organizations.  

 

10. Update on SFCWA 

Executive Director Jason Peltier discussed an analytical tool developed by Val Conner, 

which presents a global view of weaknesses and opportunities that the SFCWA science 

program has and how it’s viewed by others. 

Peltier reported that the SFCWA science team attended the Biannual Delta Science 

conference in Sacramento. It had over 1000 attendees, 700 different presentations, and the 

SFCWA team is preparing a summary of the conference.  

Peltier reported that the proposed 2017 SFCWA Strategic Objective is to develop and 

implement a Science Program Communication Strategy that strengthens the scientific 

foundation for environmental management of the Delta.  

 

11. Update on DHCCP Funding 

Executive Director Jason Peltier explained the options available to those with interests 

in the DHCCP 2009A Note proceeds. Peltier explained that for those districts that have in 

obligation under 2013A Bonds, the districts can either apply their Note proceeds interest 

towards planning costs or have their interest placed into an escrow account and applied 

towards principal-related obligations under the Bonds.  And, for those districts without an 

interest in the bonds, they can either apply their interest towards planning costs or have their 

interest refunded to them.  Peltier also discussed the two principle agreements that are being 

developed for consideration by the Water Authority.  General Counsel Jon Rubin provided 

additional detail on the draft agreements and the anticipated timing for finalizing and 

executing them. 



DRAFT 

 

12. Update On Proposed In-Delta Pilot Fallowing Program 

Assistant Executive Director Frances Mizuno reported that the Authority is working 

with the State Water Contractors to implement a 2017 In-Delta Pilot Fallowing Program.  The 

pilot program proposal is to have growers in the Delta fallow up to 5000 acres of land.  Land 

surface water consumption will be monitored using atmospheric measurements to measure and 

calculate site specific evapotranspiration rates. Mizuno explained that the initial interest of the 

Authority and SWC was due to the potential for transfer water and to continue to foster good 

relationships with the Delta interests.  However, at this point, any water created from the 

fallowing program will accrue to the Projects.  The cost for monitoring and terms for payment 

for fallowing has yet to be determined. 

 

13. Update on Board Policy & Procedures 

Executive Director Jason Peltier gave a brief review of the progress on completing the 

Policies and Procedures Manual. Peltier stated that the deadline was originally the first of the 

year, but in order to complete it accurately and have the Board review it the deadline will be the 

new fiscal year.  

General Counsel Jon Rubin reviewed the draft Policies and Procedures Manual that was 

included in the Board packet. Rubin emphasized that the Authority is committed to being 

accessible, transparent and accountable with regard to its operations and business practices. 

Rubin explained that this manual consolidates the policies and procedures of greatest concern to 

the Board and to the operations and business practices. Assistant Executive Director Frances 

Mizuno stressed how important it is to get input from the Board of Directors. 

 

14. Update on Water Quality Control Plan 

General Counsel Jon Rubin updated the Board of the efforts by the State Water 

Resources Control Board to update the Water Quality Control Plan for the Bay-Delta.  Rubin 

began by describing the documents the State Water Board recently released for Phase 1, which 

are: 1) a document that proposes updates to the San Joaquin River flows and southern Delta 

salinity objectives, and 2) the substitute environmental document that is intended to identify 

the environmental impacts of the proposed updates.  Rubin informed the Board that the State 

Water Board has requested written comments on both documents by January 17, 2017.  The State 

Board is holding a series of hearings. The Authority has indicated a desire to provide oral 



DRAFT 

comments and is set to do so on January 3rd. The Authority is also working on written comments 

and expect to file those on or before the due date. Next, Rubin described a draft scientific basis 

report the State Water Board also recently released for review. A workshop was held and 

written comments are due on the 16th of December. Oral comments were provided, and the 

Authority anticipates to file written comments. Rubin explained that the report is intended to 

help guide the State Water Board, as it proposes updates to the objectives that are the subject 

of Phase 2 and prepares a substitute environmental document for that phase.  Rubin outlined 

the types of changes identified in the report, which the State Water Board staff believes are 

supported by science.   

 

15. Committee Reports 

a. Water Resources Committee Activities 

No report provided 

b. Finance & Administration Committee Activities 

No report provided 

c. O&M Technical Committee Activities 

No report provided 

 

16. Self-Funding Report 

Director of Finance Tona Mederios reported that the Disposition of the DWR – San Luis 

Joint Use Credit was approved by the Board earlier in the meeting, and refunds will be 

distributed.  

 

17. Operations & Maintenance Report 

Assistant Executive Director Frances Mizuno provided a brief summary of pumping at 

the C.W. “Bill” Jones Pumping Plant during the month of November.  Mizuno also reported that 

flows to the Mendota Pool from the DMC were shut off on November 24th to facilitate the 

dewatering of the Mendota Pool for work on the Mendota Dam. The lower DMC below Check 

#14 has also been partially dewatered to facilitate work for the Los Banos Creek/DMC Connection 

Project, trash rack replacement at Firebaugh Canal Water District’s milepost 109.45-R turnout, 

and the Doppler flow meter installation upstream of Check #21.  Mizuno closed with an update 

on the Jones Pumping Plant Unit Rewind Project. The Authority has requested funding from 

Reclamation for the project. The Authority and Reclamation are evaluating funding/repayment 



DRAFT 

options available for this project. 

 
 

18. Operations Update 

Tom Boardman reported that C.W. “Bill” Jones Pumping Plant was at capacity for about 

10 days during November. Unexpected pumping reductions were imposed because of salinity 

concerns and concerns with COA debt.  Pumping at the Harvey O. Banks pumping plant was 

disproportionately higher than pumping at the Jones Pumping Plant due to the balance of COA-

related storage releases in that the recent storms have favored Shasta and Folsom basins more 

than Oroville.  Shasta storage was reported to be about 300 TAF below its flood control level – 

well within the range of potentially spilling given that Shasta gained 800 TAF during December 

2015.  Reservoir management releases appear imminent from Folsom with storage only 60 TAF 

remaining in its conservation storage space. 

Boardman reviewed charts showing projected refill operations for San Luis reservoir 

under 90% and 50% exceedance conditions.  Both charts showed that Reclamation will pay back 

“borrowed” water and begin storing Project water for 2017 by the end of December.  The charts 

also showed that (1) under 90% exceedance conditions, the CVP will not have sufficient water 

to meet contractual obligations (approximately a 200 TAF shortfall at the end of August), but 

(2) under 50% exceedance conditions, all minimum contractual obligations are projected to be 

met and a 10-15% allocation to the south of the Delta agricultural water service contractors. 

 

19. Water Policy Administrator Report 

Water Policy Administrator Ara Azhderian reported that at a recent meeting hosted by 

Reclamation, FWS and NMFS discussed how their agencies intend to approach regulating 2017 

CVP operations under their respective biological opinions. FWS staff explained that essentially 

the FWS will continue to implement the 2008 BiOp but, in areas where they have discretion, it 

is their intention to allow as much pumping as possible as long as environmental conditions 

warrant. For NMFS staff explained that they are currently working with Reclamation to modify 

the temperature management provision in the 2009 BiOp to provide for even cooler 

temperatures than are currently required, and aim to have a draft of the revised temperature 

criteria ready in January 20017. 

Azhderian reported that the Authority submitted written comments on Reclamation’s 

draft environmental impact statement for the long-term proposal to augment flows on the lower 

Klamath River. The Authority expressed concerns regarding the breadth of alternatives, 



DRAFT 

description of scientific uncertainty, water supply modeling outputs, and support upon legal 

authorities.  

Azhderian also reported that ACWA hosted a forum to discuss improving involvement 

of its agriculture members, and trying to improve its engagement on Ag issues. ACWA has 

developed an online survey looking for input from Ag interests. Azhderian encouraged the 

Authority’s members and others to participate in this survey.  

 

20. Executive Director’s Report 

Executive Director Jason Peltier gave an overview of the Activity Budget Preparation 

Timeline.  Peltier reported that with the transition of the Federal Legislature there are a lot of 

names floating around related to the water side some we know some we don’t it’s a black box 

right now. One thing we do know is that the plan on Inauguration Day is that the Commissioner 

will step down and David Murillo will step in as acting Commissioner until the new 

Commissioner is confirmed by the senate.  Peltier announced that Mark Cowin is retiring at the 

end of the year, but he will stay on in some capacity to help with the California Water Fix.   Peltier 

informed the Board that he and Jason Phillips have been organizing and holding some small 

meetings to try to address and deal with the request of David Murillo to work on optimizing the 

system for next year. 

 

21. Drainage Activity 

a. Grassland Basin Drainage Activity Report 

Legal Counsel Diane Rathmann reported that Joe McGahan is focusing on trying to come 

up with a storm water management plan and is going to be meeting and coordinating with 

Grassland Water District. 

b. Westside Regional Drainage Plan Report 

No report was provided. 

c. San Joaquin Valley Drainage Authority 

Legal Counsel Diane Rathmann reported that the Regional Board is being very aggressive 

in implementing its Irrigated Lands Program, and is going out issuing notices of violation to land 

owners who have not complied with providing reports. 

 

 



DRAFT 

22. Closed Session Report 

Chairman Stearns adjourned the open session to address the items listed on the Closed 

Session Agenda at approximately 12:11 p.m.  Upon return to open session at approximately 

12:30 p.m., General Counsel Jon Rubin reported that the Board met in closed session to discuss 

items listed on the agenda for closed session and there were no other reportable actions. 

 

23. Reports Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2 

There were no reports given. 

 

24. Adjournment 

The date of the next Regular Board meeting is January 12, 2017. The meeting was 

adjourned at approximately 12:35 p.m. 

































































 

 

SAN	JOAQUIN	VALLEY	WATER		
INFRASTRUCTURE	AUTHORITY	

 

September 22, 2016 
 

BY  ELECTRONIC  MAIL  
 
 

Mr. Jason Peltier 
Executive Director 
San Luis & Delta‐Mendota Water Authority 
P.O. Box 2157 
Los Banos, California 93635 
  
 
 

Dear Mr. Peltier: 
 

As you know,  in 2015, representatives of several central San Joaquin Valley 
counties began what proved to be a successful effort to organize a new Joint 
Powers Agency (JPA) directed at development of critically needed new surface 
water storage and other water infrastructure facilities, including the proposed 
Temperance Flat Dam and Reservoir.  

The  San  Joaquin  Valley  Water  Infrastructure  Authority  (SJVWIA)  was 
organized formally earlier this year by Supervisors in Merced, Madera, Fresno, 
Kings and Tulare counties. All are part of our Board of Directors as is one water 
agency,  the  San  Joaquin  River  Exchange  Contractor  Water  Authority.  Its 
Executive Director,  Steve Chedester,  serves  as  the  SJVWIA  board member 
representing West Side water agencies and  is doing a  fine  job. One vacant 
board seat is reserved for an East Side water agency. Also represented on the 
board are  three  cities  (one of which  is an at‐large member), and a Native 
American Tribe.  

Board members consider  their  representational duties  to be valley‐wide  in 
scope.  The Authority has  a  Technical Advisory Committee  (TAC) with  very 
broad and active representation. Central California Irrigation District General 
Manager Chris White chairs the TAC. 

Our motivation for organizing this JPA stemmed from both the severe drought 
and associated  impacts  to our  counties along with  concerns  voiced  to our 
member agencies reflecting concern over a perceived  lack of organized and 
unified valley‐based activity  in support  for gaining Proposition 1 state bond 
funding for surface water storage development. 
 
 

	

Governing		
Board	

TULARE	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	STEVE	WORTHLEY,		

President	
SUPERVISOR	ALLEN	ISHIDA,	

Alternate	
	

FRESNO	COUNTY	
SUPE	RVISOR	BUDDY	MENDES,		

Vice	President	
SUPERVISOR	BRIAN	PACHECO,	

Alternate	
	

MADERA	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	DAVID	ROGERS,	

Director	
SUPERVISOR	RICK	FARINELLI,	

Alternate	
	

MERCED	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	JERRY	O’BANION,	

Director	
SUPERVISOR	JOHN	PEDROZO,	

Alternate	
	

KINGS	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	DOUG	VERBOON,	

Director	
SUPERVISOR	CRAIG	PEDERSEN,	

Alternate	
	

EASTERN	CITIES	
MAYOR	VICTOR	LOPEZ,	

	Director	
CITY	OF	ORANGE	COVE	

	

MAYOR	NATHAN	MAGSIG,	
Alternate	

CITY	OF	CLOVIS	
	

WESTERN	CITIES	
MAYOR		PRO	TEM		ALVARO		PRECIADO,		

Director	
CITY	OF	AVENAL	

	

MAYOR	SYLVIA	CHAVEZ,	Alternate	
CITY	OF	HURON	

	

	WESTERN	WATER	AGENCIES	
STEVE	CHEDESTER,		

Director	
	

SAN	JOAQUIN	RIVER	EXCHANGE		
CONTRACTORS	WATER	AUTHORITY	

DAN	POPE,	Alternate	
WESTLANDS	WATER	DISTRICT	

	
	

TRIBAL	MEMBERS	
DAN	CASAS,		
Director	

ANGELA	KARST,	Alternate	
TABLE	MOUNTAIN	RANCHERIA	

	
MEMBER	AT	LARGE	
MAYOR	ROBERT	SILVA	

	

◊	
	

	EXECUTIVE	DIRECTOR	
MARIO	SANTOYO	
Telephone	

(559)	779‐7595	
	

	

Governing		
Board	

TULARE	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	STEVE	WORTHLEY,		

President	
SUPERVISOR	ALLEN	ISHIDA,	

Alternate	
	

FRESNO	COUNTY	
SUPE	RVISOR	BUDDY	MENDES,		

Vice	President	
SUPERVISOR	BRIAN	PACHECO,	

Alternate	
	

MADERA	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	DAVID	ROGERS,	

Director	
SUPERVISOR	RICK	FARINELLI,	

Alternate	
	

MERCED	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	JERRY	O’BANION,	

Director	
SUPERVISOR	JOHN	PEDROZO,	

Alternate	
	

KINGS	COUNTY	
SUPERVISOR	DOUG	VERBOON,	

Director	
SUPERVISOR	CRAIG	PEDERSEN,	

Alternate	
	

EASTERN	CITIES	
MAYOR	VICTOR	LOPEZ,	

	Director	
CITY	OF	ORANGE	COVE	

	

MAYOR	NATHAN	MAGSIG,	
Alternate	

CITY	OF	CLOVIS	
	

WESTERN	CITIES	
MAYOR		PRO	TEM		ALVARO		PRECIADO,		

Director	
CITY	OF	AVENAL	

	

MAYOR	SYLVIA	CHAVEZ,	Alternate	
CITY	OF	HURON	

	

	WESTERN	WATER	AGENCIES	
STEVE	CHEDESTER,		

Director	
	

SAN	JOAQUIN	RIVER	EXCHANGE		
CONTRACTORS	WATER	AUTHORITY	

DAN	POPE,	Alternate	
WESTLANDS	WATER	DISTRICT	

	
	

TRIBAL	MEMBERS	
DAN	CASAS,		
Director	

ANGELA	KARST,	Alternate	
TABLE	MOUNTAIN	RANCHERIA	

	
MEMBER	AT	LARGE	
MAYOR	ROBERT	SILVA	

◊	
	EXECUTIVE	DIRECTOR	

MARIO	SANTOYO	
Telephone	

(559)	779‐7595	
E‐Mail	

msantoyo@sjvwia.org	

w.tularecounty.ca.gov					■				ADDRESS:	2800	Burrel	Avenue,	Visalia,	California 93291



 

 
 

2 

 

 

With four of our five member counties including West Side areas affected longer and devastated more 
than any other region by the state’s water crisis,  it  is  fully recognized that West Side agencies have 
much to gain from additional south‐of‐Delta water storage development.  

As the SJVWIA took shape and our organizers moved into encouraging cohesive regional public agency 
water infrastructure development leadership, we also became aware of rapidly‐growing competition 
for State of California Proposition 1 and Chapter 8 bond funding that in many cases appeared to be well 
connected politically but distantly positioned from genuine water storage project proposals.  

It also became obvious that Temperance Flat’s potential to harness and safely store large amounts of 
excess storm water would of necessity be an essential infrastructure tool for making valley groundwater 
sustainable  as  state  law  now  requires.  Still  another major  concern was  the  very  tight  timeframe 
requirement adopted by  the California Water Commission  for  the Proposition 1  funding application 
process. 

As a result, the Authority’s Board of Directors and TAC have mobilized quickly and, to date, effectively 
to  advance  the  San  Joaquin  Valley’s  desire  to  build  Temperance  Flat  and  other  important water 
infrastructure facilities. We have done so with full recognition that the Authority’s focus is limited to 
dealing with the valley’s water crisis by seeking new water storage and system developments.  

One of our key actions to date was the signing, on July 1, 2016, of a Memorandum of Understanding 
with  the  U.S.  Bureau  of  Reclamation  to  coordinate  and  complete  the  final  feasibility  study  of 
Temperance Flat. Joint efforts under the MOU will also develop additional information needed to apply 
for Proposition 1 bond funding. 

As  indirect  beneficiaries with  limited  funding  available,  the  SJVWIA  can  only  do  so much.  For  the 
Temperance Flat Dam project to succeed, direct beneficiaries must both engage technically and assist 
financially to complete engineering work needed to meet the tight bond funding application deadline 
of July 2017. Your Authority and CVP contractors, with their existing uses and many historic ties to San 
Joaquin River water, are obviously major potential beneficiaries of the Temperance Flat Project.  

Your participation is very much welcomed to assist in completing our analysis and study in the short 
time frame available. Reclamation has done a thorough job of analyzing Temperance Flat but only as a 
stand‐alone project. This has  resulted  in a misleading conclusion  that  the project’s huge additional 
storage capacity of 1.3 million acre‐feet would yield only 100,000 acre‐feet of “new” water annually. 
Temperance Flat’s large size and ability to capture most large runoff events means its operations and 
benefits could reach into areas served by SL&DMWA members. The new studies involve analyzing and 
modeling the broader regional operations and benefits now being envisioned.  

Your participation would be very much welcomed  to assist  in completing project analysis and  study of 
Temperance Flat’s regional benefits in the short time frame available. We ask that your Board consider a 
contribution of at least $20,000, or any financial support you could provide. The SJVWIA will similarly gladly 
accept and appreciate support from any and all other major potential beneficiaries. 

 



 

 
 

3 

 
 
The SJVWIA welcomes the opportunity to meet with you and your board to discuss our JPA, its mission and 
the critical role your organization and others can have in making Temperance Flat Dam a reality. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Steve Worthley 
President     

 
 



 1

          
RESOLUTION NO. 2017- 

 
RESOLUTION MAKING FINDINGS UNDER 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF CENTRAL DELTA-MENDOTA REGION, NORTHERN 

DELTA-MENDOTA REGION AND SOUTH TRACY REGION  
SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT SERVICES 

ACTIVITY AGREEMENTS 
AND AUTHORIZING ACTIONS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, in August 2014 the California Legislature passed comprehensive 
groundwater legislation creating the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 
(SGMA), through which the Legislature intended “to provide local groundwater agencies 
with the authority and technical and financial assistance necessary to sustainably manage 
groundwater” [California Water Code Section 10720(d)]. 
 

WHEREAS, SGMA anticipates that each affected groundwater basin or subbasin 
will be regulated separately by one or more groundwater sustainability agencies and that 
groundwater sustainability under the Act shall be achieved through groundwater 
sustainability plans developed by one or more groundwater sustainability agencies and 
through coordination of such plans within a basin or subbasin. 
 
 WHEREAS, certain Members of the Water Authority have proposed to organize 
themselves, together with other agencies within their region, under Activity Agreements 
for the Central Delta-Mendota, Northern Delta-Mendota and South Tracy Regions of the 
Delta-Mendota and Tracy Subbasins, respectively, to obtain coordinated access to  
administrative and technical resources and services available through the Authority and 
to provide the mechanisms to share the benefits and expenses of obtaining such resources 
and services for i) in the Central Delta-Mendota and South Tracy Regions only, 
supporting the formation of a multi-agency groundwater sustainability agency separate 
and independent from the Authority in their respective Regions of the Delta-Mendota 
Basin;  2) planning, preparation and potential assistance with implementation of a 
groundwater sustainability plan for their respective Regions; and 3) for coordination with 
other such plans within the Delta-Mendota Subbasin or any other subbasins or basins as 
may be required by SGMA. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has considered that certain form of Central Delta-Mendota 
Region Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Services Activity Agreement (the 
“Central Delta-Mendota SGMA Services Activity Agreement”), a copy of which has 
been presented to the Board and is on file with the Secretary hereof. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has further considered that certain form of Memorandum 
of Agreement (the Central Delta-Mendota Region SGMA Services Memorandum of 
Agreement) setting forth the terms by which public agencies authorized by SGMA to 
perform some or all of the obligations of a groundwater sustainability agency within the 



 2

Central Delta-Mendota Region of the Delta-Mendota Subbasin can participate under the 
terms of the proposed Activity Agreement, a copy of which has also been presented to the 
Board and is on file with the Secretary hereof. 
 
  WHEREAS, the SGMA Services Activity Agreements and Memoranda of 
Understanding for the Northern Delta-Mendota Region and for the South Tracy Region 
that are substantially similar to those for the Central Delta-Mendota Region are under 
preparation. 
 
  WHEREAS, authorizing execution of the SGMA Services Activity 
Agreements and the SGMA Services MOAs for the Central Delta-Mendota, Northern 
Delta-Mendota and South Tracy Regions does not constitute a project under the 
California Environmental Quality Act because the proposed action involves continuing 
administrative activities such as general policy and procedure making (Section 
15378(b)(2) of the CEQA guidelines) and also represents administrative activities of the 
Water Authority that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the 
environment (Section 15378(b)(5) of the CEQA Guidelines); further, where it can be 
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed action in question may 
have a significant effect on the environment, the proposed action is not subject to CEQA 
(Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA guidelines). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The matters stated in the recitals above are true and correct, and the Board 
so finds, orders and determines. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Central 
Delta-Mendota Region SGMA Services Activity Agreement and the Central Delta-
Mendota Region SGMA Services Memorandum of Agreement in substantially the form 
presented to the Board, subject to such additions, deletions and other revisions as the said 
Executive Director shall approve prior to execution and further subject to the 
contingencies described in Section 4 of this Resolution. 
 
Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the preparation and execution of the 
Northern Delta-Mendota Region SGMA Services Activity Agreement and the Northern 
Delta-Mendota Region SGMA Services Memorandum of Agreement; and the South 
Tracy Region SGMA Services Activity Agreement and the South Tracy Region SGMA 
Services SGMA Services on terms substantially similar to those contained in the Central 
Delta-Mendota SGMA Services Activity Agreement and Central Delta-Mendota SGMA 
Services Memorandum of Understanding, subject to such additions, deletions and other 
revisions as the said Executive Director shall approve prior to execution and further 
subject to the contingencies described in Section 4 of this Resolution 
 
Section 4. This authorization conferred by this Resolution, and the documents 
executed in reliance upon it, shall be contingent upon the occurrence of the following 
actions:   



 3

A.   For the Activity Agreement for each of the three Regions, at least one 
Member of the Water Authority in such Region executes the Activity Agreement; and 

B. For the MOA form proposed for each of the three Regions, at least one 
public agency in such Region that is not a Member of the Water Authority executes the 
MOA. 
  
Section 5. In the event either of the contingencies described in Section 4 shall fail to 
occur, the authorization conferred by this Resolution in each Region for which the 
contingency is not satisfied is revoked ab initio as to the document or documents not 
achieving the signatures as required by said Section 3, and any documents executed by 
the Water Authority in reliance upon it shall have no binding force or effect. 
 
Section 5. The Executive Director, Assistant Executive Director or such Water 
Authority employee or consultant as either of such officers may designate, is further 
authorized and directed to take such additional steps, and to execute such additional 
documents, as may be required or reasonably necessary to the completion of the activities 
authorized by this Resolution, subject to the budgets and approvals as set forth in the 
respective documents. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of January, 2017, by the Board of Directors 
of the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority. 
 
 
 
    _______________________________________________ 
    Michael Stearns, Chairman 
    SANLUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jason Peltier, Secretary 
 



 4

 
* * * * * * * 

     
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted 
by the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, a California joint powers agency, at a 
regular meeting of the Board of Directors thereof duly called and held at the office of the 
Authority on the 12th day of January, 2017. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jason Peltier, Secretary 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 1 
DM2\7138124.1 

SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY 

CENTRAL DELTA-MENDOTA REGION  

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT 

SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  

 

 

This CENTRAL DELTA-MENDOTA REGION SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER 

MANAGEMENT ACT SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  (“Activity Agreement”), is made 

effective as of __________________, 2016 (the “Effective Date”), by and among the San Luis & 

Delta-Mendota Water Authority, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“Authority”), 

and Eagle Field Water District; Mercy Springs Water District; Oro Loma Water District; Pacheco 

Water District; Panoche Water District; San Luis Water District; Tranquillity Irrigation District;  

Fresno Slough Water District, its members who execute this Agreement (“Members”). Capitalized 

terms used in this Activity Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in Section 2 below. 

 

1. RECITALS 

a. The Members, together with certain other local agencies, have entered into 

an amended and restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement-San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water 

Authority dated as of January 1, 1992 (the “JPA”), by and among the parties indicated therein, 

establishing the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority for the purpose of exercising the 

common powers of the Members, including those powers described in this Activity Agreement. 

b. The Members are each empowered, among other powers, to provide water 

service to lands within their boundaries; to operate and maintain works and facilities for the 

development, distribution and use of water for irrigation and for any drainage or reclamation works 

connected therewith or incidental thereto and/or to operate and maintain works and facilities for 

the development, distribution and use of water for municipal and industrial use; to contract with 

the United States, the State and other public agencies and, effective January 1, 1995, with mutual 

water companies, for such purposes; to control the quality of water accepted into their respective 

systems; to exercise powers related to groundwater management  and groundwater management 

plans; and to adopt rules and regulations necessary to the exercise of such powers. 

c. In August 2014 the California Legislature passed comprehensive 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 2 
DM2\7138124.1 

groundwater legislation creating the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014. In 

adopting that Act, the Legislature intended “to provide local groundwater agencies with the 

authority and technical and financial assistance necessary to sustainably manage groundwater” 

[California Water Code Section 10720(d)]. 

d. The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act anticipates that each 

affected groundwater basin or subbasin will be regulated separately by one or more groundwater 

sustainability agencies and the Members  and certain counties and local agencies organizing 

themselves outside of the Authority umbrella have formed or are forming individual or multi-

agency groundwater sustainability agencies for purposes of compliance with that Act.  

e.  Groundwater sustainability under the Act is to be achieved through 

groundwater sustainability plans, which can be a single plan developed by one or more groundwater 

sustainability agencies, or multiple coordinated plans within a basin or subbasin. (California Water 

Code Section 10727). 

f. The Members overlie a portion of the  Delta-Mendota Subbasin number 5-

22.07 of the San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin identified in the California Department of 

Water Resources (“DWR”) Bulletin 118 (the “DM Subbasin”), said portion being designated as 

the Central Delta-Mendota Region (“Central DM Region”), as its boundaries may be modified 

from time to time.  

g. DWR has designated the entire DM Subbasin as critically overdrafted, and 

under the Act, each groundwater sustainability agency is required to assume its regulatory role by 

June 30, 2017, and to submit a groundwater sustainability plan to DWR by January 31, 2020; the 

State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) may identify a basin or subbasin as probationary 

on the basis of the failure to identify a GSA, adopt a GSP, or upon a finding that a GSP is inadequate. 

h. The objective of the Members under this Activity Agreement and under 

SGMA Services Memoranda of Agreement is to obtain coordinated access to the administrative 

and technical resources and services available through the Authority and to provide the 

mechanisms to share the benefits and expenses of obtaining such resources and services to assist 

in i) the formation of a multi-agency groundwater sustainability agency in the Central Delta-

Mendota Region of the Delta-Mendota Basin; and 2) the planning, preparation and potential 

assistance with implementation of a groundwater sustainability plan; and 3) for coordination with 

other such plans within the Delta-Mendota Subbasin. 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 3 
DM2\7138124.1 

i. The Members desire to achieve the objectives recited above through the 

joint exercise of their common powers under this Activity Agreement and through the Authority 

entering into memoranda of agreement to allow the participation in the program by counties, other 

local agencies or mutual water companies that are not members of the Authority, but that agree to 

participate under such agreements pursuant to the terms of this Activity Agreement.  

j. The Members expressly intend that neither the Authority nor the other 

Members nor local agencies participating through separate memoranda of agreement acting 

through the Activity Agreement Management Committee (as defined below) will have the 

authority to limit or interfere with the respective Members’ rights and authorities over their own 

internal matters, including but not limited to, a Member’s surface water supplies, groundwater 

supplies, facilities, operations and water management, subject to terms of this Activity Agreement.  

 

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the true and correct facts recited above, and of the 

covenants, terms and conditions set forth herein, the Activity Agreement Members and the 

Authority agree as follows: 

 

2 DEFINITIONS 

 2.1. "Activity Agreement Member(s)," “Member” or “Members” shall mean a 

member or members of the Authority who are signatories to this Activity Agreement 

 2.2. "Activity Agreement" or “Agreement” shall mean this Central Delta-Mendota 

Region Groundwater Sustainability Management Act Services Activity Agreement. 

 2.3. "Activity Agreement Expenses" shall mean costs incurred by the Authority 

pursuant to this Activity Agreement and a share of Authority Operating Costs allocable to 

Members of this Activity Agreement and allocable to any Participating Agencies through MOAs 

executed in conjunction with this Activity Agreement. 

2.4. “Activity Participants” shall mean the Activity Agreement Members and the SS-

MOA Participants, as defined below. 

 2.5. "Administration Agreement(s) " shall mean those certain agreements between 

the Authority and Activity Agreement Members for the undertaking of activities and sharing of 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 4 
DM2\7138124.1 

costs and benefits pursuant to Sections 22 and 23 of the JPA. 

 2.6. "Authority” shall mean the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority. 

 2.7. "Authority Operating Costs" shall mean the Authority’s rent and other occupancy 

charges, acquisition costs of office furniture and equipment, including telephone, telecopy, 

photocopy, cost of cars and other vehicles, insurance premiums, salaries and wages of employees 

including payments in connection with retirement programs and other benefit programs, fees of 

creditors, lawyers, engineers and other consultants, travel, telephone, telecopy and photocopy 

expenses and any other general administrative expenses. 

  2.8. “Basin” shall mean the Delta-Mendota Subbasin of the San Joaquin Valley 

Groundwater Basin, subbasin number 5-22.07, as identified in Bulletin 118 prepared by the 

California Department of Water Resources. 

  2.9. “Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the San Luis & Delta-

Mendota Water Authority. 

  2.10. “Central Delta-Mendota Region” or “Central DM Region” shall mean that 

portion of the Delta-Mendota Subbasin within the jurisdictional area of the Activity Participants 

as set forth in the map attached hereto as EXHIBIT “A”.   

  2.11. “Central DM Multi-Agency GSA shall mean the multi-agency Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency formed within the Central DM Region amongst certain Activity 

Participants. 

 2.12 “Central DM GSP” or “GSP” shall mean the Groundwater Sustainability Plan, as 

defined by Section 10721(k) of the Water Code for the Central DM Region that the Activity 

Participants intend to jointly develop, adopt and implement through participation in this 

Agreement, whether as a stand-alone GSP, or as the portion of a broader GSP for the DM Subbasin 

covering the Central DM Region.  

 2.13. “Coordination Agreement” shall mean a legal agreement adopted between two or 

more GSA's that provides the basis for intra-basin or inter-basin coordination of the GSPs pursuant 

to SGMA. 

  2.14.  “GSA” shall mean a groundwater sustainability agency enabled by SGMA to 

regulate a portion of a basin or subbasin cooperatively with all other GSA’s in the basin or 

subbasin, in compliance with the terms and provisions of SGMA [see also “Central DM Multi-

Agency GSA”].  



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 5 
DM2\7138124.1 

  2.15. "JPA" shall mean that certain Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers 

Agreement effective January 1, 1992, establishing the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority. 

  2.16 “Management Committee” shall mean the steering committee established in 

Section 6 of this Activity Agreement to direct the activities under this Agreement and the SGMA 

Services Memoranda of Agreement. 

 2.17 “Outside Service Area” and its plural form shall mean an area or areas within the 

Central DM Region that are outside the boundary of a specific Activity Participant that is not a 

County for which the referenced Activity Participant provides services, including specifically 

those services necessary or appropriate for SGMA implementation within such Outside Service 

Area.  The term “Outside Service Area” as used in this Agreement does not mean portions of a 

County covered by that County for SGMA purposes under Water Code Section 10724, and 

agreements among the County, Activity Participant and owners of the Outside Service Area may 

be required to document that the Activity Participant, rather than the County, will provide SGMA 

services for the Outside Service Area..    

  2.18. "SGMA" shall mean the California Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 

2014 and all regulations adopted under the legislation (SB 1168, SB 1319 and AB 1739), Water 

Code Sections 10720-10755.4, which collectively comprise SGMA, as that legislation and those 

regulations may be amended from time to time.   

  2.19. "SGMA Services Memorandum of Agreement" or "SS-MOA" and their plural 

forms shall mean those certain agreements in substantially the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT 

“B” among the Authority, a county or counties, and local agencies or mutual water companies 

who are not Authority Members to provide for their participation in the activities subject to this 

Agreement. 

  2.20. “Special Project Agreement” shall mean an agreement entered into between 

certain Members and/or SS-MOA Participants that desire to collectively carry out a special project 

that is not carried out by all of the Activity Participants. 

2.21. “Special Project Expenses” shall mean costs and expenses allocable to Activity 

Participants incurred pursuant to a Special Project Agreement, and shall also include Authority 

Operating Costs allocated to the Special Project Agreement. 

 2.22. “Special Project Participants” of a Special Project Agreement shall mean those 

Activity Participants who execute such Special Project Agreement.  



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 6 
DM2\7138124.1 

2.23. “SS-MOA Participant” and their plural forms shall mean a local agency or 

agencies, a county or counties, or a mutual water company or companies that are statutorily 

authorized to implement SGMA who are not Members of the Authority, but who have agreed by 

executing a SGMA Services Memorandum of Agreement to share with Activity Agreement 

Members the costs, obligations and benefits of participating in the activities contemplated by this 

Agreement.  

 2.24. “Voting Alternate” shall mean the duly appointed alternate to a member of the 

Management Committee who is present at a meeting during the absence or disqualification due to 

conflict of interest of the Management Committee member for whom the alternate has been 

appointed; said alternate having the right under those circumstances to cast the vote otherwise 

accorded to the Management Committee member. 

 

3. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT.  

The purpose of this Activity Agreement is to provide the contractual basis for the Members 

in conjunction with SS-MOA Participants that have independently formed or will form individual 

or multi-agency GSA’s within the Central DM Region to utilize the resources of the Authority to 

assist with 1) the formation of a multi-agency groundwater sustainability agency in the Central 

Delta-Mendota Region of the Delta-Mendota Sub-Basin that is separate and independent from the 

Authority; 2) planning, preparation and assistance with implementation of a groundwater 

sustainability plan for the  Central DM Region;  and 3) coordination with other such plans within 

the Delta-Mendota Subbasin; and 4) to achieve the objectives stated in the Recitals above through 

the joint exercise of some or all of the common powers of the Activity Agreement Members and 

through the contractual agreements of the SS-MOA Participants. 

 

4. ROLE OF AUTHORITY; LIMITS THEREON 

 4.1 Role of the Authority. The role of the Authority under this Activity Agreement will 

be to provide, through Authority staff or contracts with consultants, and as directed by the 

Management Committee, services to assist the Activity Participants in conducting the activities 

contemplated by this Agreement.  The Authority will provide only those services directed by the 

Management Committee and supported with funding from the Activity Participants in accordance 

with budgets recommended by the Management Committee and approved by the Board of 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 7 
DM2\7138124.1 

Directors and the Activity Participants, as more specially provided under the terms of this 

Agreement.      

 4.2 Authorized Activities of the Authority under the Activity Agreement.   The types 

of activities authorized to carry out the purposes of this Activity Agreement shall specifically 

include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

  a. To provide to the Central DM Region Activity Participants administrative 

services to assist them in forming and implementing a multi-agency GSA. 

  b. To i) provide staff resources or to ii) solicit proposals from one or more 

consultants, and at the direction of the Management Committee, to accept proposals and enter into 

services agreements to acquire consulting services; as needed to assist in organizing multiple 

parties to compiling data, conducting monitoring, undertaking a groundwater study or studies and 

developing models as needed to develop and adopt a GSP for the Central DM Region.  

  c. Through budgets approved by the Management Committee, the Board of 

Directors, and the Activity Participants, to provide funding mechanisms to obtain services 

necessary for the development and implementation of Central DM GSP.  

  d. To provide accounting and billing services to collect from the Activity 

Participants the costs of services incurred under the Activity Agreement and SS-MOAs pursuant 

to the terms of this Activity Agreement. 

  e. To provide services to facilitate outreach to interested parties as defined by 

SGMA that may be required for the developing and implementing the Central DM Multi-Agency 

GSA or GSP. 

  f.   To provide services to facilitate coordination among the GSA’s in other 

portions of the DM Subbasin, and GSA’s in other subbasins to assist in the development or 

implementation of intra-basin or inter-basin Coordination Agreements required by SGMA.  

g. To propose for adoption by GSAs in the Central DM Region forms of   rules, 

regulations, policies and procedures for governing the adoption and implementation of a GSP as 

authorized by Chapter 5 of SGMA. 

  h. To undertake such additional activities and responsibilities as may be 

requested and funded by the Activity Participants acting through the Management Committee.  

 

 4.3 Limitations on Authority Role. Notwithstanding the Activity Participants’ 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 8 
DM2\7138124.1 

agreement to acquire certain services through this Agreement, the Activity Participants  intend to 

establish GSA’s independent of this Agreement and to maintain complete control and autonomy 

over the surface water and groundwater assets to which they are currently legally entitled, nothing 

in this Agreement authorizes the Water Authority to establish a GSA or commit the Activity 

Participants to SGMA implementation actions within their respective boundaries and Outside 

Service Areas. The geographic boundaries of the Central DM Region, and of each Activity 

Participant, are set forth in the map attached hereto as EXHIBIT “A.”    

  

 4.4  Powers Reserved to Board of Directors and Limitations Thereon.  

  a. The Board of Directors shall have ultimate approval authority over all 

Activity Agreement Annual Budgets based upon the recommendation of the Management 

Committee and approval of the Activity Participants; provided, the Board of Directors may not 

alter the Activity Agreement Annual Budgets without the Management Committee’s review and 

recommendation or Activity Participant approval of such alteration. 

b. The Board of Directors shall have the right, upon recommendation of or in 

consultation with the Management Committee, to approve all amendments to this Activity 

Agreement, including any amendment terminating the Activity Agreement, and to approve the SS-

MOAs with each agency seeking to become a SS-MOA Participant; provided, that no amendment 

of this Activity Agreement shall be required to add new Activity Agreement Members prior to 

February 28, 2017. 

c. The Board of Directors shall have the right, upon recommendation of or in 

consultation with the Management Committee, to act on any claims and to make decisions 

concerning the prosecution of, defense of, or other participation in actions or proceedings at law 

brought against the Authority arising from this Activity Agreement. 

  d. The Board of Directors delegates to the Management Committee the 

authority to conduct the activities described in this Activity Agreement pursuant to the terms of 

this Activity Agreement and any SS-MOAs, without the required approval of the Board of 

Directors except as specifically provided in Sections 4.4a through c.  Also except as set forth in 

Sections 4.4a through c. and 8.3, this delegation shall specifically include, but not be limited to, 

the authority to enter into contracts within approved Activity Agreement budgets. 

 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 9 
DM2\7138124.1 

5. POWERS JOINTLY EXERCISED BY ACTIVITY AGREEMENT MEMBERS; 

RESERVED POWERS 

5.1  Powers Exercised. The Members and the Authority intend that this Activity 

Agreement shall provide for the joint exercise of certain powers common to the Members in 

obtaining administrative and technical resources and services needed to support their efforts through  

the Central DM Region GSA’s to implement SGMA within their respective jurisdictions, including, 

for example, services and resources to i) develop data; ii) conduct outreach with interested parties as 

defined by SGMA; iii) assist in preparing and  implementing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan; and 

iv) assist in preparing and entering into intra-basin or inter-basin Coordination Agreements. The 

Members are each empowered by the laws of the State of California to exercise the powers specified 

in this Activity Agreement, and to comply with the provisions of SGMA and other laws. These 

common powers shall be exercised for the benefit of any one or more of the Activity Participants in 

the manner set forth in this Activity Agreement. The Authority and the Members further intend that 

SS-MOA Participants with powers to implement SGMA may, by executing SS-MOAs, share the 

costs, obligations and benefits of this Agreement.  Subject to the limitations set forth by statute 

applicable to any SS-MOA Participant that is a mutual water company or in this Activity Agreement, 

the Activity Participants shall have the powers to perform all acts necessary to accomplish their 

purpose as stated in this Activity Agreement, to be exercised through the Management Committee, 

including but not limited to the following: 

a. To make and/or assume contracts and to employ agents, employees, 

consultants and such other persons [as the Management Committee may deem necessary], to the full 

exercise of its power, including, but not limited to, engineering, hydrogeological, and other 

consultants, attorneys, accountants and financial advisors, for the purpose of providing any service 

required to accomplish the purposes identified herein. 

b.  To conduct all necessary research and investigations, and to compile 

appropriate reports and collect data from all available sources to assist in preparation of a GSP, 

and for development and implementation of intra-basin or inter-basin Coordination Agreements, 

so as to allow the Activity Participants to participate in the sustainable management of the Central 

DM Region in compliance with SGMA. 

c. To cooperate, act in conjunction with, and contract with the United States, 

the State of California, or any agency thereof, Merced and Fresno Counties, and other Members, 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 10 
DM2\7138124.1 

SS-MOA Participants, and GSA’s, or any of them, in the full exercise of the powers of the Activity 

Participants for purposes of assisting in forming the Central DM Multi-Agency GSA and 

preparation, adoption and implementation of the Central DM GSP and any Coordination 

agreements required by SGMA. 

d. To apply on behalf of the Activity Participants for, or if directed by the 

Management Committee, to accept, receive and administer on behalf of the  Activity Participants 

agreements, grants, loans, gifts, contributions, donations or other aid from any agency of the 

United States, the State of California or other public or private person or entity necessary or 

beneficial for assisting the Activity Participants with the Central DM Multi-Agency GSA or for 

preparing or implementing the Central DM GSP. 

e. To assist in developing forms of rules, regulations, policies and procedures for 

governing the adoption and implementation of a GSP as authorized by Chapter 5 of SGMA for use 

by the Central DM Multi-Agency GSA. 

f. To assist in developing policies, rules or practices for utilizing the 

enforcement powers identified in SGMA (Water Code §10732) for use by the Central DM Multi-

Agency GSA, including the imposition and collection of civil penalties that shall be utilized in 

accordance with the requirements of SGMA. 

g. To investigate legislation and proposed legislation, regulations and 

proposed SWRCB actions affecting SGMA and the Central DM Region and make appearances 

regarding such matters;  

 

5.2 Powers Reserved to Activity Participants. There are expressly reserved to each 

Activity Participant the powers necessary to carry out the intent expressed in this section. 

a. Separate from this Agreement, to establish a GSA individually or 

collectively within the Activity Participant’s boundaries or the area managed in whole or in part 

by such Activity Participant. 

b.  To approve those actions under this Agreement set forth in Section 7.2. 

c.  At each individual Activity Participant’s election, acting through GSAs 

established by that Activity Participant, to implement SGMA and the GSP adopted pursuant to this 

Activity Agreement within the Activity Participant’s boundaries or Outside Service Area.  

  d.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Activity Agreement, the 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 11 
DM2\7138124.1 

Authority shall not undertake any activities within the geographic or service area boundaries of 

any of the Activity Participant pursuant to the GSP developed or adopted hereunder unless the 

Activity Participant has formally and expressly consented and agreed to the activity proposed. 

e. The Activity Participants expressly intend that neither this Agreement nor 

any GSP prepared or being implemented utilizing services of the Authority through this Activity 

Agreement that is adopted by a GSA or GSA’s within the Central DM Region shall be construed 

as authorizing the Authority or the Activity Participants acting through the Activity Agreement 

Management Committee, or any dispute resolution process contained herein, to: 

(1) determine or alter surface water rights or groundwater rights [California 

Water Code Section 10720.5(b)]; 

(2)  make binding determinations of the water rights of any person or entity 

[California Water Code Section 10726.8(b)]; or 

(3)  supersede the existing land use authority of cities or counties, including 

the city or county general plan, within the overlying subbasin [California Water Code Section 

10726.8(f)]. 

  f. The Activity Participants are organizing themselves into individual or 

multi-agency GSA’s to implement the requirements of SGMA separate from this Agreement. The 

Activity Participants intend to maintain complete control and autonomy over the surface water and 

groundwater assets to which they are currently legally entitled, and make no commitments by 

entering into this Activity Agreement to share or otherwise contribute their water supply assets as 

part of the preparation or implementation of a GSP. The geographic boundaries of the Central DM 

Region and the GSA(s) within that Region, and of each Member and SS-MOA Participant, are set 

forth in the map attached hereto as EXHIBIT “A”.    

 

6. ORGANIZATION. 

6.1 Governing Body. The business of the Activity Agreement shall be conducted by 

a Management Committee consisting of one (1) person appointed by each Activity Participant.  

a. Management Committee members shall be appointed by action of the 

governing body of the represented Activity Participant, and such appointments shall be effective 

upon the appointment date as communicated in writing to the Authority. Each appointee shall 

serve on the Management Committee from the date of appointment by the governing body of the 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 12 
DM2\7138124.1 

Activity Participant he/she represents at the pleasure of such governing body.  

b. Vacancies in the position of a Management Committee member or 

alternate shall be filled by the represented Activity Participant in the same manner as the provided 

for the appointment of the initial Management Committee member or alternate.  The Executive 

Director of the Authority, its Assistant Executive Director and Authority employees or 

appointees designated by the Assistant Executive Director may participate as staff members and 

attend all Management Committee meetings, but shall have no vote. 

6.2  Meetings. The Executive Director of the Authority or, acting on his behalf, the 

Assistant Executive Director of the Authority, or the Chairman of the Management Committee 

is authorized to call meetings of the Management Committee as necessary and appropriate to 

conduct the business under the Activity Agreement.  In addition to such authority to call 

meetings, the Management Committee may, but is not required to, set a date for regular meetings 

of the Management Committee.  All such meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the 

requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950 et seq.). 

 6.3 Quorum.  A majority of the then-appointed Management Committee members 

plus any Voting Alternates shall constitute a quorum of the Management Committee. Each 

appointed Management Committee member or Voting Alternate shall have one (1) vote.  

 6.4 Voting.  Except as expressly stated to the contrary in this Activity Agreement, the 

vote of an Activity Participant’s duly appointed Management Committee representative or Voting 

Alternate is deemed to be the vote of that Activity Participant.  A simple majority of the quorum 

shall be required for the adoption of a resolution, motion or other action of the Management 

Committee, except that: 

  a. A majority vote of less than a quorum may vote to adjourn or, meeting as a 

subcommittee of the whole, to hear reports on non-action items listed on the agenda; 

  b. Any of the following actions shall require a unanimous vote of a quorum of 

the Management Committee.  For purposes of this Section 6.4b, a “unanimous vote” is defined as 

the affirmative vote of every Management Committee member and Voting Alternate with a 

quorum of the Management Committee being present: 

 (1)  A recommendation to the Board of Directors of the Authority to a 

compromise or payment of any claim against the Authority arising from the Activity Agreement; 

   (2)  To submit to the Activity Participants for consideration by the 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 13 
DM2\7138124.1 

Central DM Multi-Agency GSA any proposed Central DM GSP. 

   (3)  Any other action for which a unanimous vote is required by the terms 

of this Agreement. 

    

  c. The following actions shall require a two-thirds vote of a quorum of the 

Management Committee: 

   (1) To adopt a proposed initial operating budget within ninety (90) days 

of the execution of this Activity Agreement, and proposed annual budget by January 15 of each 

year or by such alternate date as may be required so that it can be incorporated into the Authority’s 

budget for the March 1 fiscal year. 

 (2) To propose to set or modify the Participation Percentages of the 

Activity Participants from time to time. 

 (3) To authorize the Authority to enter into agreements with consultants 

within the approved budgets, subject to the limitations provided in this Activity Agreement. 

 (4) To provide recommendations to Activity Participants for 

consideration by the Central DM Multi-Agency GSA regarding imposing fees authorized by 

SGMA to fund the cost complying with SGMA, and sustainably managing groundwater within the 

Central DM Region; 

 (5) To propose rules, regulations, policies and procedures recommended 

to the Activity Participants for consideration by the Central DM Multi-Agency GSA governing the 

adoption and implementation of a GSP as authorized by Chapter 5 of SGMA. 

 (6) To assist the Activity Participants  by investigating and reporting to 

the Management Committee on legislation and proposed legislation, regulations and proposed 

SWRCB actions affecting SGMA and the DM Subbasin and by making appearances regarding such 

matters. 

  d. Vote on Deemed Withdrawal.  The vote for a determination that an Activity 

Participant is deemed to have withdrawn from the Activity Agreement pursuant to Section 6.6 b shall 

be a unanimous vote of a quorum, not counting the vote of the Activity Participant about which the 

determination is being made. 

 6.5 Officers. The Management Committee shall elect a chairperson, a vice-

chairperson and a secretary.  The chairperson and vice-chairperson shall be, and the secretary 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 14 
DM2\7138124.1 

may, but need not be, a Management Committee member. The chairperson shall preside at all 

meetings of the Management Committee and the vice-chairperson shall act as the chairperson in 

the absence of the chairperson elected by the Management Committee.  All elected officers shall 

remain in office at the pleasure of a majority vote of the Management Committee. 

 6.6 Powers of Management Committee and Limitations Thereon.  

  a. Except for those matters reserved to the Board of Directors or for which 

the approval of the  Activity Participants is required by the terms of this Activity Agreement, the 

Management Committee shall undertake all actions necessary for carrying out the Activity 

Agreement, including but not limited to setting policy or practices for the Activity Agreement 

and under SS-MOAs; making budget recommendations in conjunction with the Executive 

Director and/or the Assistant Executive Director of the Authority or any Authority staff or 

consultant designated to manage the Activity Agreement; determining the recommended basis 

for calculation of the participation percentages for each fiscal year, and the timing required for 

payments of obligations hereunder; employing consultants and otherwise authorizing 

expenditure of Activity Agreement funds within the parameters of the budget approved by the 

Authority; developing and implementing guidelines, rules or regulations; and such other actions 

as shall be reasonably necessary or convenient to the purposes of the Activity Agreement. 

  b. When a Activity Participant fails or refuses to participate financially or through 

the Management Committee for a period of time longer than six (6) months after written notice 

from the Authority without entering into an agreement with the Authority to cure any financial 

default or to meet any other obligation required for its active participation in the Activity 

Agreement or under its SS-MOA, the Management Committee, voting as set forth in Section 6.4d 

shall determine whether or not such Activity Participant shall be deemed to have withdrawn from 

the Agreement or from participation pursuant to its SS-MOA and if it so determines, shall request 

that the Board of Directors approve the determination and deem that the Activity Participant has 

withdrawn from the Activity Agreement or from participation pursuant to its SS-MOA.  Such vote 

shall not preclude reinstatement of the deemed withdrawn agency by agreement of the Activity 

Participants and the Authority. 

 

7. APPROVAL BY AN ACTIVITY PARTICIPANT OR ACTIVITY 

PARTICIPANTS.   



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 15 
DM2\7138124.1 

 7.1 When the terms of this Agreement or applicable law require the approval of an 

Activity Participant, written documentation of such approval, whether by Resolution, motion, or 

other form of authorization, must be provided to the Authority and to each of the other Activity 

Participants.  

  a.  For actions requiring the approval of only the particular Activity 

Participant, such as appointing a representative to the Management Committee, approval only by 

such Activity Participant is required.   

  b. When approval of the Activity Participants is required for a particular 

action, the approval of a majority of the Activity Participants will constitute approval of the 

action.   

 7.2 Approval by the Activity Participant or the Activity Participants as appropriate 

shall be required for 

a. Approval of a Management-Committee-recommended budget; 

b. Establishing or modifying the Participation Percentage applicable to the 

Activity Participant. 

c.  Amendment of this Agreement, including but not limited to, for purposes 

of adding a new Member or the replacement of this Agreement with an alternative form of 

agreement; 

d. Adoption of the Central DM GSP applicable to such Activity Participant.  

 

8. BUDGETARY RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACTIVITY PARTICIPANTS 

 

Subject to Section 8.3 below, the Activity Participants, acting through their respective 

appointed Management Committee members, are hereby authorized by the public agency 

appointing such Management Committee Members to cooperate with the Executive Director 

and/or the Assistant Executive Director of the Authority to provide and recommend approval of 

a budget for the activities authorized by this Activity Agreement, annually or more frequently as 

needed, for presentation to the Board of Directors of the Authority in accordance with Section 

22 of the JPA and Section  4.4 of this Activity Agreement. All budgets and amendments thereof 

which result in a budget increase shall be subject to the approval of the Authority Board of 

Directors as part of any mid-term budget adjustment.  



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 16 
DM2\7138124.1 

8.1 Initial Budget.  To initially fund the budget for this Activity Agreement, 

the Activity Participants agree to contribute a total of $__________________ in equal shares.  In 

the event the Activity Participants have contributed initial funding for purposes of the Activity 

Agreement through a separate form of agreement, then the amounts paid under such agreement 

shall be credited against the initial costs for all Activity Participants required by this Section, 

with appropriate adjustments for any overpayments.  

8.2 Budget to Actual Adjustments. The Authority shall true up budgeted amounts 

collected from the Activity Participants to actual expenditures annually following the end of each 

fiscal year.  Any over-payments between budgeted and actual expenditures, taking into account 

any year-end carryover reserve established by the Management Committee, shall be credited or 

refunded to each Activity Participant in equal shares for the period through February 28, 2017 

and for each year thereafter, based upon its Participation Percentage.  Each Activity Participant 

shall be billed for any under-payment following the true-up, with payment due thirty (30) days 

after the invoice is received. 

 8.3 Budget Authority of Management Committee Members. The Management 

Committee Members are authorized to recommend budgets for approval by the Activity 

Participants, which approval shall be contingent upon the  Activity Participant meeting statutory 

or constitutional requirements applicable to the that Activity Participant; such approved budgets 

shall be submitted to the Authority Board consistent with Section 4.4a of this Agreement. 

9. ACCOUNTABILITY, REPORTS AND AUDITS  

9.1 Full books and accounts for this Activity Agreement shall be maintained by the 

Authority in accordance with practices established by, or consistent with, those utilized by the 

Controller of the State of California for public entities. The books and records shall be open to 

inspection by the Activity Participants at all reasonable times, and by bondholders and lenders as and 

to the extent provided by resolution or indenture. 

 9.2 There shall be strict accountability of all funds deposited on behalf of the Activity 

Agreement with the Authority.  The Treasurer of the Authority, directly or acting through its 

Accounting Department, shall provide regular reports of Activity Agreement accounts.  Funds of the 

Activity Agreement shall be subject to audit by the Auditor of the Authority.  An Activity Participant 

may request an independent audit of the Activity Agreement funds; any such audit shall be conducted 

at the expense of the requesting Activity Participant. 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 17 
DM2\7138124.1 

 

10. AUTHORIZATION TO ALLOCATE OPERATING COSTS 

 Each Activity Agreement Member has entered into an Administration Agreement which 

authorizes an agreement by and among the Authority and any of its Members or other entities 

(including associate members) to provide for undertaking and sharing costs and benefits of any 

authorized activity of the Authority. The Authority and the Activity Participants agree that all 

Activity Agreement Expenses incurred by the Authority under this Agreement are the costs of 

the Activity Participants, and not of the Authority, and shall be paid by the Activity Participants; 

provided, however, that this Section shall not preclude the Activity Agreement Members from 

accepting voluntary contributions from other members of the Authority or other interested 

parties, and applying such contributions to the purposes hereof. Each SS-MOA Participant shall 

agree to pay its allocated share of Activity Agreement Expenses and Authority Operating Costs 

assigned to this Activity Agreement pursuant to the SS-MOA signed by such SS-MOA 

Participant. 

 

  

11. PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES.  

The participation percentage for each Activity Participant shall be utilized to determine 

the share of Activity Agreement Expenses allocated to each Activity Participant.   

11.1 Initial Participation Percentages. The approach to establishing Participation 

Percentages shall be determined by the Activity Participants prior to March 1, 2017.  Until the 

adoption of the Central DM GSP, the Participation Percentages may be evaluated by the 

Management Committee from time to time, including to consider new information concerning 

the relative contribution or responsibility of each Activity Participant towards achieving the 

sustainability goal established in the GSP, with a vote to recommend revisions as provided in 

Section 6.4c.  Any such Management Committee-recommended revisions shall be presented to 

the Activity Participants for approval as provided in Section 7.2.  

11.2 Participation Percentages After GSP Adoption. Upon adoption of an 

estimated sustainable yield and a sustainability goal for the Central Delta-Mendota Region in the 

GSP, the Management Committee shall consider recalculating the Participation Percentage for 

each Activity Participant, which shall be at least partially based on an allocation of each Activity 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 18 
DM2\7138124.1 

Participant’s relative contribution or responsibility towards achieving the sustainability goal 

established in the GSP.  The Management Committee-recommended recalculation shall be 

presented to the Activity Participants for approval as provided in Section 7.2.  The Participation 

Percentages may continue to be evaluated by the Management Committee from time to time, in 

order to consider new information concerning the relative contribution or responsibility of each 

Activity Participant towards achieving the sustainability goal established in the GSP, with a vote 

to recommend revisions as provided in Section 6.4c(2).  Any such Management Committee-

recommended revisions shall also be presented to the Activity Participants for approval as 

provided in Section 7.2(b). 

11.3  Ongoing Documentation of Participation Percentages. The current 

Participation Percentages of each Activity Participant, shall be dated and attached as EXHIBIT 

“C,” to this Agreement, effective upon the date approved by all Activity Participants, without 

any further Amendment of this Agreement being required.  Any further amendments to 

EXHIBIT “C” may be made using the procedure included in this Section 11 without any further 

separate Amendment of this Agreement being required. 

 11.4 Invoicing and Payment. The Authority shall bill the Activity Participants for 

all Activity Agreement Expenses and Special Project Expenses in their respective Participation 

Percentages on the same schedule as it utilizes for collecting membership dues to implement the 

Authority budget for each March 1 through February 28/29 fiscal year, generally twice yearly in 

mid-March and August.  Payments are due 30 days following receipt of the Authority’s invoice.   

 

    

12. SOURCE OF PAYMENTS 

 Each Activity Participant agrees that it will timely take actions necessary to provide 

sufficient money to meet its obligations hereunder. Each Activity Participant hereby confirms that 

the Authority and other Activity Participants are third party beneficiaries of such Activity 

Participant’s obligations under this Agreement and may take such actions in law or in equity as 

may be desirable to enforce payments hereunder. The Management Committee may also seek funding 

from other alternative sources, including but not limited to state and federal grants or loans, and unless 

specifically allocated by the unanimous vote of the Management Committee, for example, to fund 

a project within the boundaries of a particular Member, all funding contributions obtained from 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 19 
DM2\7138124.1 

alternative sources shall be allocated to each Activity Participant according to its Participation 

Percentages. 

 

13. TERM 

 This Activity Agreement shall take effect on the Effective Date first above identified.  This 

Activity Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until this Activity Agreement is amended, 

rescinded or terminated by the Authority and the Activity Agreement Members, with approval 

from the SS-MOA Participants. 

 

14. WITHDRAWAL FROM FURTHER PARTICIPATION 

 14.1 Subject to Section 14.3 of this Activity Agreement, any Activity Agreement Member 

may voluntarily withdraw from this Activity Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice of 

such withdrawal to the Authority and each of the other Activity Participants.  

14.2 In the event the Management Committee determines and the Board of Directors 

approves the determination that any Activity Participant is deemed to have withdrawn pursuant to 

Sections 6.6b of this Activity Agreement, such withdrawing Activity Participant shall pay for all 

such Activity Participant’s financial obligations incurred prior to the deemed withdrawal date 

pursuant to the terms of this Activity Agreement. 

 14.3 In the event of either a voluntary withdrawal or deemed withdrawal by an Activity 

Participant, as of the withdrawal date, all rights of participation in this Activity Agreement shall 

cease for the withdrawing Activity Participant, and the withdrawing Activity Participant shall 

within thirty (30) days, pay all such Activity Participant’s financial obligations incurred prior to 

such withdrawal date pursuant to the terms of this Activity Agreement. If a Activity Participant 

withdraws prior to June 30, 2017, the withdrawing Activity Participant shall notify DWR and all 

applicable counties that it will act alone as a GSA or join an alternate multi-agency GSA. Until 

July 1, 2017, the applicable county may also elect to cover the area of the withdrawing Member. 

 14.4  Upon withdrawal, an Activity Participant shall be entitled to use any data or other 

information developed under this Activity Agreement during its time as an Activity Participant. 

Further, should an Activity Participant withdraw from the Activity Agreement after completion of 

the GSP, it shall be entitled to utilize the GSP for future implementation of SGMA within its 

boundaries. 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 20 
DM2\7138124.1 

 

15. INITIAL MEMBERSHIP/ADMISSION OF NEW MEMBERS 

 Members of the Authority may become Members of this Activity Agreement through 

February 28, 2017. After February 28, 2017, admission of new Members shall require amendment 

of this Activity Agreement and approval by the Board of Directors and the Activity Agreement 

Members.    Admission of SS-MOA Participants at any time shall be through execution of an SS-

MOA and action by the Board of Directors. Admission of additional SS-MOA Participants after 

February 28, 2017, shall also require the recommendation of the Management Committee.  The 

admission of the new Activity Participant shall be documented by that new Member signing this 

Activity Agreement or that new SS-MOA Participant entering into an SS-MOA with the Authority, 

subject to this Activity Agreement.  

 

16.   SPECIAL PROJECTS 

16.1 Fewer than all of the Activity Participants may enter into a Special Project 

Agreement to achieve any of the purposes or activities authorized by this Activity Agreement, and 

to share in the expenses and costs of such activity.  Special Project Agreements must be in writing 

and may be documented by completion and execution of a form substantially similar to the form 

set out in EXHIBIT “D” to this Activity Agreement. 

16.2 Activity Participants that sign Special Project Agreements agree that all Special 

Project Expenses incurred by the Authority under this Activity Agreement for each such Special 

Project are the costs of the Special Project Participants, respectively, and not of the Authority or 

of the Activity Participants not participating in the Special Project, and the Special Project 

Expenses shall be paid by the respective Special Project Participants. 

 16.3 Special Project Participants shall hold the Authority and each Activity Participant 

that is not a member of the Special Project Agreement free and harmless from and indemnify 

each of them against any and all costs, losses, damages, claims and liabilities arising from the 

Special Project Agreement.  The indemnification obligation of Special Project Participants shall 

be the same as specified in Section 18.2 for Activity Participants in general, except that it shall 

be limited to the costs, losses, damages, claims and liabilities arising from the Special Project 

Agreement. 

 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 21 
DM2\7138124.1 

17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  

  Should any controversy arise concerning this Activity Agreement or the rights and 

duties of the Authority or any Activity Participant under this Agreement or SS-MOA, the parties 

to the dispute shall submit the matter to a person appointed by the Management Committee to 

mediate the dispute. The appointed mediator shall be a person who is not an employee or agent of 

the Authority or any Activity Participant and who has knowledge of and experience in the 

management of groundwater resources. The appointed mediator shall render a final decision on 

the matter in dispute and will be compensated by those engaged in the dispute.  This provision 

shall be a condition precedent to but shall not otherwise replace the rights of the parties to seek 

arbitration under the procedures set forth in the Code of Civil Procedure or judicial resolution of 

their disputes. 

	

18. INDEMNIFICATION  

 18.1 Indemnification of Non-Members.  The Activity Participants shall hold the 

Authority and each of its members who is not an Activity Participant, free and harmless from and 

indemnify each of them against any and all costs, losses, damages, claims and liabilities arising 

from this Activity Agreement.  This indemnification obligation includes the obligation of the 

Activity Participants to defend the Authority, and all members of the Authority that are not 

participants in this Activity Agreement, at the sole expense of the Activity Participants, in any 

action or proceeding brought against the Authority or any of its members not participating in this 

Activity Agreement, to recover any such costs, losses, damages, claims or liabilities arising from 

this Activity Agreement, as well as the obligation to pay for any and all costs of litigation incurred 

by the Authority as a result of entering into this Activity Agreement.  Such costs may include, but 

are not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by the Authority pursuant to approved budgets 

to defend its provision of services under this Activity Agreement.  The costs of defense and 

indemnification shall be shared among the Activity Participants in the same percentage as each 

such Activity Participant’s Participation Percentage under the then-current schedule.  The duty to 

defend and indemnify the Authority or any members of the Authority that are not participants in 

this Activity Agreement shall not apply to any costs, losses, damages, claims or liabilities arising 

from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Authority or of any 

members of the Authority not participating in this Activity Agreement. 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 22 
DM2\7138124.1 

 18.2 Indemnification of Authority and Activity Participants..   Any Activity 

Participant  that withdraws or is deemed to have withdrawn from the Activity Agreement or SS-

MOA agrees that it shall indemnify the Authority, each of its members who is not an Activity 

Agreement Member, and the  other Activity Participants from  costs, losses, damages, claims or 

liabilities arising from its withdrawal. 

 

19. MISCELLANEOUS 

 19.1 Amendments. This Activity Agreement may be amended in writing by the 

Authority and the Activity Agreement Members, with approval from the SS-MOA Participants. 

 19.2 Assignment; Binding on Successors. Except as otherwise provided in this Activity 

Agreement, the rights and duties of the Activity Agreement Member may not be assigned or 

delegated without the written consent of the Authority and other Members. Any attempt to assign 

or delegate such rights or duties in contravention of this Activity Agreement shall be null and void. 

Any approved assignment or delegation shall be consistent with the terms of any contracts, 

resolutions, indemnities and other obligations of the Authority then in effect. This Activity 

Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and assigns of the 

Authority and the Activity Participants. 

 19.3 Counterparts. This Activity Agreement may be executed by the Authority and the 

Activity Agreement Members in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and 

delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

 19.4 Governing Law. This Activity Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California. 

19.5 Severability. If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions of this 

Activity Agreement shall be held to be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, it is hereby agreed by 

the Activity Agreement Members and the Authority that the remainder of the Activity Agreement 

shall not be affected thereby. 

 19.6 Headings. The titles of sections of this Activity Agreement are for convenience 

only and no presumption or implication of the intent of the Authority and the Members  as to the 

construction of this Activity Agreement shall be drawn therefrom. 

 



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 23 
DM2\7138124.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Members and the Authority have executed this 

Activity Agreement as of the date first above written. 

 

SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY 

 

By:  _______________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

 

 

ACTIVITY AGREEMENT MEMBER 

 

Agency Name: _____________________________ 

 

By:  _______________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” - MAP OF CENTRAL DM REGION BOUNDARIES 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 24 
DM2\7138124.1 

EXHIBIT “B” 

FORM OF SS-MOA  

 

 

 

  



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 25 
DM2\7138124.1 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

ACTIVITY AGREEMENT MEMBERS’ & PARTICIPATING AGENCIES’ 

PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES 

 

Agency Name    Participation Status  Participation Percentage* 

 

Eagle Field Water District  Member 

Fresno County    SS-MOA Participant 

Fresno Slough Water District  Member 

Merced County   SS-MOA Participant 

 Mercy Springs Water District Member 

 Oro Loma Water District  Member 

 Pacheco Water District   SS-MOA  Participant 

Panoche Water District   SS-MOA  Participant 

San Luis Water District  Member 

 Santa Nella County Water District Member 

 Tranquillity Irrigation District Member 

 Widren Water District  SS-MOA Participant 

 

 

Dated Effective as of:  ___________________________ 

 

 

 

  



Draft SGMA SERVICES ACTIVITY AGREEMENT  Final 1-6-2017 26 
DM2\7138124.1 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

SAMPLE FORM OF SPECIAL PROJECT AGREEMENT 



CENTRAL DM REGION SGMA SERVICES MOA Final 1-6-2017                                                         1 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR 

CENTRAL DELTA-MENDOTA REGION 

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT SERVICES  

 

 

 

This MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR CENTRAL DELTA-MENDOTA REGION 

GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT SERVICES  (“SS-MOA”), is made effective as of 

__________________, 2017 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the San Luis & Delta-

Mendota Water Authority, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“Authority”), and 

__________________________, a ________________________ (“SS-MOA PARTICIPANT”) 

Unless expressly and differently defined in this MOA, capitalized terms used in this MOA shall 

have the meanings set forth in Section 2 of Appendix 1 to this MOA, a copy of which is attached 

hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

 

1. RECITALS 

a. The Authority and certain of its member agencies have entered into that 

certain for Central Delta-Mendota Region Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Services 

Activity Agreement  (the “Activity Agreement”) to efficiently and cost-effectively obtain 

services from the Authority to assist the Activity Agreement Members acting through individual 

or multi-agency groundwater sustainability agencies that are independent and separate from the 

Authority in complying with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (the “Act”).  

Appendix 1 incorporated into this MOA is a copy of  Activity Agreement. 

b. The SS-MOA Participant is not a member of the Authority but is a 

County, local agency or mutual water company with jurisdictional boundaries including lands 

that are subject to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (the “Act”) and that are located 

in a portion of the  Delta-Mendota Subbasin number 5-22.07 of the San Joaquin Valley 

Groundwater Basin identified in the California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) 

Bulletin 118 (the “DM Subbasin”), said portion being designated as the Central Delta-Mendota 

Region (“Central DM Region”) as its boundaries may be modified from time to time.  

c. The SS-MOA Participant is empowered by statute to exercise powers 



CENTRAL DM REGION SGMA SERVICES MOA Final 1-6-2017                                                         2 

under the Act and is or will become either its own groundwater sustainability agency or part of a 

multi-agency groundwater sustainability agency within the boundaries of the Central DM Region 

that is independent and separate from the Authority. 

d. The SS-MOA Participant has the power to enter into agreements with 

other public agencies or private entities, including for purposes of assuring that lands within its 

boundaries are within the coverage of a groundwater management plan as required by the Act. 

e. The Activity Agreement contemplates that the “Activity Participants” 

under the Activity Agreement shall be comprised of the Activity Agreement Members, this SS-

MOA Participant, and all other local agencies participating through separate Memoranda of 

Agreements that contain substantially the same terms as contained in this Memorandum of 

Agreement. 

f. The objective of the SS-MOA Participant  under this Memorandum of 

Agreement is to obtain coordinated access to the administrative and technical resources and 

services available through the Authority and to provide the mechanisms to share the benefits and 

expenses of obtaining such resources and services to assist in  1) the formation of a multi-agency 

groundwater sustainability agency in the Central Delta-Mendota Sub-Basin of the Delta-Mendota 

Basin that is separate and independent from the Authority; and 2) the planning, preparation and 

potential assistance with implementation of a groundwater sustainability plan for the Central DM 

Region; and 3) for coordination with other such plans within the Delta-Mendota Subbasin. 

g. The SS-MOA Participant expressly intends that neither the Authority nor 

the Activity Agreement Members or other local agencies participating through their separate 

Memoranda of Agreements  acting through the Activity Agreement Management Committee (as 

defined in the Activity Agreement) will have the authority to limit or interfere with the 

respective participants’ rights and authorities over their own internal matters, including but not 

limited to, an Activity Participant’s surface water supplies, groundwater supplies, facilities, 

operations and water management, subject to terms of this Activity Agreement.  

 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the true and correct facts recited above, and of the 

covenants, terms and conditions set forth herein, the Authority and the SS-MOA Participant 

agree as follows: 



CENTRAL DM REGION SGMA SERVICES MOA Final 1-6-2017                                                         3 

 

Section 1. The SS-MOA Participant hereby agrees to be bound by and to perform the 

obligations of SS-MOA Participants established under the Activity Agreement, and the Authority 

agrees that the SS-MOA Participant so agreeing and performing shall have the rights and be 

entitled to share in the benefits of the activities under the SGMA Services Activity Agreement on 

the terms and conditions described in the Activity Agreement, Appendix 1 incorporated by 

reference into this MOA. 

Section 2. The Authority and the SS-MOA Participant acknowledge and agree that 

although the SS-MOA Participant is not a signatory to the Activity Agreement for the Central 

DM Region, the SS-MOA Participant shall be, in all respects, entitled to representation and to 

vote as part of the Management Committee as described in Section 6 of the Activity Agreement.  

Section 3. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

3.1 Amendments This SS-MOA may be amended in writing by the Parties. 

3.2 Assignment; Binding on Successors. Except as otherwise provided in this 

SS-MOA, the rights and duties of the SS-MOA Participant may not be assigned or delegated 

without the written consent of the Authority. Any attempt to assign or delegate such rights or 

duties in contravention of this SS-MOA shall be null and void. Any approved assignment or 

delegation shall be consistent with the terms of any contracts, resolutions, indemnities and other 

obligations of the Authority then in effect. This SS-MOA shall inure to the benefit of, and be 

binding upon, the successors and assigns of the Authority and the SS-MOA Participant. 

3.3 Counterparts. This SS-MOA may be executed by the Authority and the 

SS-MOA Participant in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered 

shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same 

instrument. 

3.4 Governing Law. This SS-MOA shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of California. 

3.5 Severability. If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions 

of this SS-MOA shall be held to be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, it is hereby agreed by the 

SS-MOA Participant and the Authority that the remainder of the Activity Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

3.6 Headings. The titles of sections of this SS-MOA are for convenience only 



CENTRAL DM REGION SGMA SERVICES MOA Final 1-6-2017                                                         4 

and no presumption or implication of the intent of the SS-MOA Participant and the Authority as 

to the construction of this SS-MOA shall be drawn therefrom. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority and the SS-MOA Participant have 

executed this Memorandum of Agreement as of the date first above written. 

 

SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY 

 

By:  _______________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date:  ______________________________ 

 

SS-MOA PARTICIPANT 

___________________________________ 

 

By:  _______________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ 

 

 


